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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apeejay Hotel & Restaurants Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the Profit
& total comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Companyin accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements. ’ -
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.
The other information as identified above is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes inequityand
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted inIndia.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is




not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate inthe circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a goingconcern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factorsin

(i)planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with




(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(e)

(h)

ii)

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure ‘1’ our report on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes
of our audit have been received.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account and with the returns received.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with the relevant rules issuedthereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of theAct.;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, does not apply to
the company vide notification dated 13th June 2017 (G.S.R. 583(E)) issued by Ministry of
Corportae Affairs.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,As this is a Private Limited Company
hence the provisions of section 197 are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given tous:

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on 31st March, 2023, hence there is no
impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statement on that date

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.




‘ANNEXURE - 1’ TO THE AUDITORS REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

iii.

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a.

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by
the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land
on which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance
deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings
and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and
Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

As explained to us, the inventory of the Company has been physically verified
during the year by the Management. In our opinion the frequency of such
verification is reasonable, and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for any class of inventories were not noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.




vi.

vii.

viii.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees, and securities
provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

As order made by Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Act, Company does not exceed the limit as specified in Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 hence reporting under clause(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax,
Service tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, Value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations are given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above items were in arrears as at
31 March, 2023 for a period exceeding six months from the date they became
payable.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there is no such disputes of dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise duty, Value added tax as at March 31,
2023,

As per the information and explanations given to us and tests performed by us there were
no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

a. The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b. The company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lenders.

c. Theterm loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,
and there was no diversion of the amount of loan and the purpose for which it
was used.

d. Funds raised on short term basis, have not been utilized for the long-term
purposes.

e. The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures, hence,
the clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

f. The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies, hence, the clause
3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
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under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

c. No whistleblower complaints were received by the Company during the year
and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties, and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c & d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any




i) There were no amounts which were required to be transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the company during the year.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 I(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(d) The Company has neither proposed nor paid any dividend for the financial year, hence this sub-rule
is not applicable .
(v) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect from
April 1, 2023 to the Company, which are companies incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting under
Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March

31, 2023.
For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 301011E/ E300025
Place: Kolkata Priya Agarwal
Date: 11t July, 2023 Partner

Membership Number:303874
UDIN- 23303874BGTXIE6518




assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xX.  The provision of CSR under sub section (1) of Section 135 of companies Act 2013 are not
applicable to the company ,hence reporting under clause(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 301011E/ E300025

X

Priya Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number- 303874
UDIN - 23303874BGTXIE6518

Place: Kolkata
Date: 11" July, 2023




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in Rs "000

Bt Note As at 31 March, | As at 31 March,
No. 2023 2022
1. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 50,744.40 53,514.81
(b) Intangible assets 3 551.89 892.62
(c) Right to use asset 3A 48,800.47 49,245.88
(d) Income tax assets (Net) 4 487.11 2,779.51
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 4,481.88 8,678.71
1,05,065.75 1,45,111.52
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 4,139.14 3,5690.07
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 4,848.24 4,706.50
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 8 28,562.38 21,715.93
(iv) Other financial assets 9 345.00 100.00
(c) Other current assels 10 13,448.18 7,031.40
51,442.94 37,143.88
Total Assels 1,56,508.69 1,52,255.40
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 100.00 100.00
(b) Other equity 12 22229.33 (227.82)
Total equity 22329.33 (127.82)
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 13 52,446.67 56,930.10
(ii) Borrowings 14 - 750.67
(b) Provisions 15 2,262.02 1,875.75
54,708.69 59,556.53
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Lease Liabilities 16 7.741.71 5,355.80
(i) Borrowings 17 750.67 2,366.26
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 241,76 688.54
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 62,653.49 58,727.88
(v) Other financial liabilites 19 2,401.27 3,378.02
(b) Provisions 20 897.09 627.34
(c) Other current liabilities 21 4,784 .67 21,682.85
79,470.66 92,826.69
Total Liabilities 1,34,179.35 1,52,383.22
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,56,508.69 1,52,255.40
Corporate information & summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 2-42
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As per our report of even date
For B M CHATRATH & COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Priya Agarwal
Partner W2 ‘\\ s
Membership No. : 303874
Kolkata N
Date : 11-07-2023
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Pvt. Ltd.

| et /)‘f;wi’ KAl

Vijay Dewan
Director
(DIN: 00051164)

Atul Khosla
Director
(DIN: 01009784)




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in Rs'000

Particulars Note | Forthe Year Ended 31| For the Year Ended 31
No. March, 2023 March, 2022
1. INCOME
Revenue from contracts with customers 22 1,77,061.11 1,09,008.67
Other income 23 206.38 203.39
Total Income 1,77,267.49 1,09,212.06
il. EXPENSES
Consumption of provision, beverages, wine/liqour and smokes 24 13,931.51 10,500.14
Employee benefits expenses 25 24,187.05 13,022.58
Finance costs 26 5,876.56 7,669.85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 17,362.86 16,282.20
Other expenses 28 84,558.35 64,478.38
Total Expenses 1,45,916.32 1,11,953.16
M. Profit before tax 31,351.17 (2,741.10)
IV. Tax expense / (credit) 29
Current Tax 4,700.00 -
Deferred Tax Charge 4,196.10 (3,557.9)
V. Profit for the period 22,455.07 816.80
V1. Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 281 (18.50)
- Income tax effect on above (0.73) 4.81
Vil. Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 22,457.15 803.11
-Earning Per Share (Basic) 29A 2,245.51 81.68
-Earning Per Share (Diluted) 2,245.51 81.68
Corporate information & summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 2-45

As per our report of even date

For B M CHATRATH & COLLP 1=
Chartered Accountants {1
ICAI Figm Registration Number: 301011E/E300026 .\

Priya Aga
Partner =\
Membership No.: 303874 . ..
Kolkata, N4
Date : 11-07-2023

| =0 1 -

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Apeejay
Hotels & Restaurants Pvt. Ltd.

U\J“"‘—‘q- ey == _ ./; (IL/ K

Vijay Dewan
Director
{DIN: 00051164)

Atul Khosla
Director
(DIN: 01009784)




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

a. Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares of 10/- each, Number of Shares Value of Shares
Balance As At 1st April'2021 10 100

Add / (Less): Changes in Equity Share
Capitai during the year

Balance As At 1st April'2022 10 100
Add / (Less): Changes in Equity Share .

Capital during the year )
Balance As At 1st April'2023 10 100

b. Other Equity

Remeasurement
of defined benefit
Retained
E:::h i obligation through TOTAL
E Other Comprehensive
Income

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 {1,100.27) 69.34 {1,030.93)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year 816.80 - 816.80
Other Comprehensive income - {13.69) {13.69)
Dividends Paid s = b
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (283.47) 55.66 (227.82)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year 22,455.07 - 22,455.07
Other Comprehensive Income - 2.08 2.08
Dividends Paid " . "
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 22,171.60 57.74 22,229.33

Corporate Information & summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 1)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.

As per our report of even date
For 8 M CHATRATHA COLLP For and on behalf of Board of

Chartered Accountants Directors of Apeejav Hotels &
ICAlFirm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025
5

Priya Aga Vijay Dewan Atul Khosla
Partner Director Director
Membership No. : 303874 (DIN: 00051164)  (DIN: 01009784)
Kolkata

Date : 11-07-2023




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Amount in Rs(000) Amount in Rs{000)
Fasiiculars For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 31,351.17 (2,741.10)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 17,362.86 16,282.20
Finance costs 5,876.56 7.669.85
Bad Debt written off 641.13 4,236.73
55,231.72 25,447.68
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (882.88) (1,134.72)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial asset (245.00) 2.00
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (549.07) (31.96)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (6,416.78) 4,237.04
Increasef(Decrease) in trade payables 3,478.83 1,194.08
Increase/(Decrease) In provisions 658.83 19.33
Increasef/{Decrease) in Financial Liabilities (976.76) 339.02
{Decrease) in Other liabilities (16,898.18) 13,706.36
(21,831.00) 18,331.13
Income tax paid (2,407.62) {500.00)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 30,993.09 43,278.81
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment / Intangible assets (9,400.18) (17,715.09)
Net cash used in investing activities (B} (9,400.18) (17,715.09
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - -
Repayment of non-current borrowings (750.67) (831.27)
Proceeds from current borrowings (net) (1,615.58) (22,436.81)
Payment of lease liabilities (12,210.96) {10,000.00)
Finance costs paid (169.24) (3,135.62
Net cash used in financing activities ( C) (14,746.46) (36,403.70
NET INCREASE / {(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BANK BALANCE (A+B+C) 6,846.45 (10,839.98)
Add: Cash and equivalent at the beginning of the Period 21,715.93 32,555.91
Cash and equivalent at the end of the Period 28,562.38 21,715.93
Cash and cash equivalent as per above comprises of (Refer note 8)
Cash on hand 302.41 821.34
Foreign Currency in hand - 50.44
Balances with Banks - In current accounts 28,259.97 20,844.15
28,562.38 21,715.93
Non-cash financing and investing activities
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets 4,406.12 -

Refer Note 14.1 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities.

As per our report of even dale

For B M CHATRATH & COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025

Priya Agarwal [ KoL) %
Partner

Membership No. : 303874

Kolkata, e

Date : 11-07-2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method"as set out in Ind AS - 7 “Statements of Cash Flow”

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Pvt. Ltd.

Lo S M R f%ﬂ{ 9%

Altul Khosla
Director
(DIN: 01009784)

Vijay Dewan
Director
(DIN: 00051164)




TE 18 P MITED
O THE F: \(d 31 March 2
2 . PR AND Ei
Dloarand | erecticat iatatistion lm«nn qulpmnll Computer —l Lot T Venicies i Totat
a8 a1 31 March , 2021 445227 12,018.78 11,799.08 2,502,171 20,2867 4,326.74 £5,936.30
Additions during tha period 2.749.87 1,366.30 9.761.18 - 3,847.73 - 17,715.08
during the pesod - - . a = -
Batance as ot 31 March , 2022 721214 13,383.08 21,550.28 250217 24,676.40 432814 7385138
Adaons dunng Ihs penod 1,570.23 I 288444 . 576.03 B 5.031.59
Olsposals during the pedod - - - - - -
iﬁm. s ol 3 March , 2023 8,182.37 13,382.08 2443470 2,502.77 25,253.33 4.320.74 78.682.98
[ p
[Batance as at 31 March , 2021 280,90 $56.20 6,094.17 92008 2,519.55 1,170.50 11,641.51
D charga dunng the period 350,68 68129 5,045.85 417,53 1479.37 540,84 2,495.07
Disposals dusing the peviod - = - o . = 5
Batance as a1 31 Mar , 2022 63149 1,317.49 11,140.02 13922 3,098.92 1,711.43 20,138.68
0 charge during Ihe period 376.69 660.15 419493 [TIXE] 1,600 05 540.84 780198
|Disposats duting tha pesied - % - v . v %
Balance as al 31 March , 202 1.000.38 1,988.64 15.334.94 175435 5,801.97 2,28227 21,3658
Balance ws at 31 Mar , 2022 6.680.85 | 12,005.89 ] 16,410.24 | 1,185.64 | 20,671.48 | 281501 53,514.81
Balanca as at 31 Match , 2023 7,773.99 | 11,300.44 | 9,099.76 | 748.42 | 19,851.38 | 2.074.48 | 50,744.40
Asset Category
Estimated Useful | Estimated Usetul Life
Lite {In years] as {in years) as por
per [
Plant & Equipment and Electiical lnstallalion 15 20
[Othee Equipment 5 s
Buildings
General 60 100
Furnflure & Fixtures :
Ganeral 18 15-20
Used in holels and testewents 8 15-20
Vahicles :
Gansial 0 )
Used in busiess of unning (hem oo Ao & 0
Compulors
Servers and networks ] 3
Desitops & Lagtops 3 0
Katchen Equipment 6 []
[Crockery & Cutleny{ inc. in Kitchen Equipment) 3 3

Kitchen Equipment Includes Creckery & Cutlery and it will depreciate over & Years and 3 yoars respectively.




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023

NOTE 3 - OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amount in Rs '000

Computer
Software

Gross Block

Balance as at 31 March , 2021 2,457.22
Additions during the period

Disposals during the period -

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 2,457.22
Additions during the period 167.80
Disposals during the period =

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 2,625.02
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 31 March , 2021 1,073.16
Depreciation charge during the period 491.44
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 1,564.60
Depreciation charge during the period 508.52
Disposals during the period -

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 2,073.12
Net block

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 892.62
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 551.89

Note:
Amortisation method

Computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over estimated useful life of five years from the date of capitalisation.

NOTE 3A . RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

[Particulars

Amount in Rs '000

Balance as at 31 March , 2021 71,132.93
Additions during the period

Disposals during the period -

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 71,132.93
Additions during the period 8,606.91
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 79,739.83
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 31 March , 2021 14,591.37
Additions during the period 7,295.68
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 21,887.05
Additions during the period 9,052.31
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 30,939.36
Net block

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 49,245.88
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 48,800.47

Bene




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023

Corporate Information

Apeejay Holels & Restauranls Privale Limiled (the 'Company’) is a privale Limited company domiciled in India and is incorporaled in india under the pravisions of the Companies
Acl, 2013 (the Acl). lis shares are not listed on any slock exchanges. The registered office of the Company is localed al 17, Park Stresl, Kolkala, Wesl Bengal, Indla, 700016.

1

21

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operaling and managing holels.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company for the lweive monihs have been prepared in accerdance wilh accounling principles generally accepled in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) spacified under seclion 133 of the Act., read wilh the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended {from time to time) and
other relevanl provisions of the Acl.

The financial stalements have been prepared on going concern basis In accordance with accounting principles generally accepled In India. Furlher, the financial slatements have
been prepared on historical cost basis except for cerlain financial assels and financial Babilities and derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair values as below:

)
ii)

certain financial assels and liabililies measured al teir value;
defined benafit plans — plan assels measured al fair vale,

Summary of significant accounting policies

(3}

i

ii)
i)
iv)

Current versus Non-current Classification
The company presents assets and liabifilies in the balance sheel based on current/ non-current classification. An assel is Irealed as currenl when il is:
Expecled Lo be realised or inlended 10 be sold or d in normal operaling cycle of the company

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
Expected o be realised wilhin lwelve months after Ihe reparting period, of
Gash or cash squivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o setlie a liabiity for at least twelve monihs after the reporting period.

All othar assels are classified as non-currenl.
Daferred lax asssls and liabiiies are classified as non-current assels and fabliities.
A liability is currant when:

]
i)
i)

iv)

itis axpected lo be seltled in the normal operating cycle,

il Is held primarily for the purpose of lrading,

it is due 1o be setlied within twelve months after the reperting pericd, or

there is no uncandilional right to defer saltlement of the liability for at least twelve monlhs afler the reponting peried.

The Company classified ali other liabilities s non-current.
Al essets and liabiliies have been classified as currenl or non-current as par the Campany’s normal operating cycle.

(B}

iy

]
U]

i)

(d)
U]

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised when il is probable that the economic benafils will flow to the Company and it cen be refiably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being

made. Revenue is measured al the falr value of the ¢ i or ivabls, taking info by terms of pay and axcluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government. The company applies the revenue recognilion criteria to each separalely idenlifiable comp t of the tr lon as
sel out below:

Ravenue from sale of services.

Revenus room renlals, sale of food and beverages and other aliied services refated to hotel operations is recognised when the services are rendered and the same becomes

Revenua from holel operalions and relaled services is recognised net of discounts and sales related taxes in the period in which Ihe sewvices are rendered.The Company
collacis service lax, value addad tax (VAT} and fuxury tax (now collectively subsumed into GST w.e.{. July 1, 2017) on behalf of the governmenl, and therefore, these are not
economic benefits Nlowing to the Company.

Interest income:

int tincoma is ded on | basis using the affective intersst rate (EIR) method. For all debt Instruments measured either at amortised cosl or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effeclive inferest rate (EiR). EIR Is lhe rate Ihal exaclly discounts the estimaled fulure cash payments or
receipls over tha expecled life of the financial inslrumenl or 2 shorter periad, where appropriale, o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset o to the amartised cost of
a financial fiability. When ing the ive i rate, the Company estimates lhe expected cash flows by considering all the contractual lerms of the financlal
instrument (for le, prepaymant, extenslon, call and similar oplions) bul does nol consider the expected credit losses.

Forelgn currencios
Functional and Presentation Currency

The slandalone financial stat is are p ted in Indian Rupee ('INR’ or "Rs’), which is the Company’s functional and presenlation curency.
Transactions and balances
Monetary assets and iabiilies i ¢ in foreign jes are lransiated at the funclional curtency spot rales of exchange al the reporling date.

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an adjusiment to borrowing costs are presented in the stalemant of profit and loss, within financs costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the stalement of profit and ioss on a net basis within other income/ other expense.

Non-monelary items measured al falr value in a foreign curmency are lranslated using the exchange cales al the dale when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monelary items measured at fair value is treated in line wilh the recognition of the gain of loss on the change in fair value of the ilem (ie.,
translation differences on ilems whosa fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised In OCH or profit or loss, respeclively).

Taxes
Current income tax

Tax expanse recognized in slatement of profit and loss comprises the sum of def d tax and current lax except the cnes recognized in other comprehensive incoms or
directly In equily.




(ia}

(e)

Current income lax assels and kabiities are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid lo tho taxation aulhorilies. Tha tax rales and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at Ihe reporting date, where the compnay operales and generales taxable income.

Current income tax relating o ilems recognised oulside profit or loss is recognised outside profit of loss (either in other comprehensive incorme or in equity). Currenl tax items
are recognised i comelation to the underlying transaclion eilher in OCI or direclly in equily. Managemenl pericdically evaluates positions laken in the lax relums with respecl
ta situalions in which applicable tax regulalions are subject lo interprelation and eslablishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lizblily method on lemporary dilferences between the lax bases of assels and kabiliies and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes al the reparting dale.

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for all taxable temporary dilferences,sxcepl:

When the defared lax liabilty arises from the inilial recognition of 2n asset or liability in a Iransaction thal is not a pusiness combination and, al the tima of the Wransaclion,
affects neither the accounting prolil nor laxable profil or loss

In respecl of taxable lemporary differences associated wilth investments in subsidiaries, associales and interesls in joint venlures, when the liming of the reversal of the
temporary differences can ba controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will nol raverse in Ihe foreseeable fulure

Doferred lax assels are recognised for all deductible lemporary ditferences, the carry forward of unused tax credils and any unused lax losses. Delerred tax assels are
recognised to Ihe extent that i is probable that laxable profit will be availabla againsl which the deduclible lemporary ditferences, and the carry forward of unused tax credils
end unused lax losses can be ulilised, except

When (he deferred tax assel relaling lo the deductible temparary difference arises from the inilial recognition of an asset or liabillly in a transaclion thal is not a business
combination and, at the tims of the lransaction, affacts neilher the accounting profil nor taxable profit or loss

to the extent thal il s probable that the temporary ditferences will reverse in the foreseesble future and laxable profit will be available against which the temperery differences
can be ulilised.

In raspect of deductible lemporary ditfe jated wilh inveslments in subsidiaries, assoclates and k in joint vents deferred lax assets are recognised only

Thecutyhgmoidelwadluassminwiqwadnaad\regomgdalomdmduudlothememmduismbmﬂmbnb{nmlstﬁmmmwbe
availabie to alow all or part of the ceterred tax assel lo be utilised. Unrecognised deferred lax assels are re d al each reporiing date and are g fo the exlen!
that il has become probable thal fuiure laxable profils will allow the deferred iax asse! o ba recovered.

Mmdmum;r\dlahﬂiesuremaasuauauhela:mmu:almexpededloawlyinuyenrmnhassstls!ealsadofﬂwaebiilylssailad.baseuenlaxms
{and lax laws) thal have been d of tivaly al ihe reporting date.,

Delened tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income of in equily). Deferred tax ilems are
recognised in correlation lo the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equily.

Da!mmdlumelsandnalmdmmsaraoﬂsalIfaleqanyanfomeablnﬂgl'ﬂaﬁsatlomoﬁmmmmaxnsa!sagahmeutmumwmm:llhedalamadlms
relale to the same taxable enlily and the same laxalion authority.

Property, Plant and Equig

Recognition and initial measurement:

All items of property, plant and equip | are slaled al deemed cost {fair value as al iransition dale) less accumudated depreciation, impairment loss, if any. Deemed cosl
Includes expenditure that is direclly stiribulable to the acquisilion of the ilems.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount of recognised as a separal assel, as appropriale, cnly when it is probable that fulure ic benefi Is
assocmdﬂhtmthleMCmmmmmﬂdﬂwlmmhmudrm.Thocanyingunnunldwmmpomnlmuﬂadh—uaupuﬂe
assel Is derecognised when replaced. All olher repairs and mair e are charged fo the stal 1 of profit and loss during ha reporting period in which they are incurred.

Caphlwuk—hpmwanmmpﬁsssﬂwmo(ptw.ptanlWqupmsnnha!asenutmmadyfwthoh'h!mdodmmmmﬂmw«rﬂmauﬂakalsﬂo.

Subsequent measurement (Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value):

Pm.ummwmswnmwumm;mmv iation and imp 't losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
pmvidedonawﬂqﬂmbwls,cnﬂpiedmhmdmum(nsdmwmwmdh&M&lal!wmcmmmmﬂ:

The Cempany, based on | made by i upalmwmmexmm.mmwmwm.mmew.wam
uufdlvasmichmmm{mmmwmwmhmahllmhwmmmwmmmmu»emmmw;:u
mﬂsﬁcandmnocllaitappma‘maﬁmdmpemdmrﬁichhassalsareimybbowad.

Asset Category
Estimated Useful Life (in years) as  Estimated Useful Life {in years) as
per Schedule i per technical assessment

Piant & Equipment and Electrical Ir i 15 20
Furniture & Fixtures :
General 10 15-20
Used in holels and restaurants 8 15-20
Vehiclos :
General 10 8
Used in business of running them o hire 6
Computers :
Sarvers and nelworks 6 3
Desklops & Laplops 3 3

5 6

Kitchen Equipment
]gﬂxw 3 3

Deptociaﬁonondeelmdmslololharpnpedy.pmnlandeqr.ipmml(mewwedmmmaMMswmmtmmmmmspodnodh
Schedule |l 1o the Compantes Act, 2013,

The useful lives, resi vaiues and d of depreciali ormmmmmmmnmmmm.uwmummdmwm
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infangible Assets

Intangible assels acouired separalely are measured on inilia! recognilion al cost. Folloving inilial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less any accumulated
amoriisation and accumulated impainment losses.

The usefut lives of intangible assels (Computer software) are assessed as eilher finite of indefinile.

Computer Software for inleral use, which is primarily acquired from Whird party vendors, is capitalised. Subsequenl cosls assoclated wilh mainlaining such software are
recognised as expense as incurred. Cosl of soflware includes license fees and cost of implementalion / system integration servicas, where applicable.

Intangible assals with finile fives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication thal the inlengible asset may be
impaired. The amoriisation pericd and the amorfisalion melhod for an intangible asset vilh a finite useful ife are reviswed al least al tha end of each reporling pericd.
Chenges in the expected ussful fife or the expecied pallern of consumption of future economic benefils embodied in the asset are considered lo modify the amorfisation
pariod or method, as appropriale, and are lrealed as changes in accounting estimates. The amorlisation expense on intangible assels wilh finite lives is recognised in the
stalement of profit and loss unless such expendilure forms part of carrying value of another assel.

Intangible assels with finile lives are amerlised over the useful economic life and assessed lor impalrment whenever Ihere is an indication that the intangible assel may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amorlisation malhad for an intangible assel with a finite useful life are reviewed al lsasl ai the end of each reporiing period.
Changes in the expecled useful life or the expecled pallern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assel ara considered lo modify the amoriisation
period or method, as appropriale, and are trealed as changas in accounting eslimales. The amoriisalion expense on inlangible assets wih finite fives Is recognised In the
statement of profit and loss uniess such expsnditure forms part of carrying value of another assel.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an inlangible assel are measurad as the dilference between the nal disposal praceads and the carrying amount of the assel and
are recognised in the statement of profit of loss when the asset is derecopnised.

Amartisation method
Computer software are amorlized on a siraight line basis over estimated useful life of five years from the date of capitalisation.

Impalrment of non-financlal assets:

Al each reporiing date, the company assesses whether there is any \ndication based on inlernaliexternat factars, thal an asset may be impaired. if any such Indication exisls,
the company eslimates the recoverable amounl of the assel. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an assetl's of cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs
of disposal and ils value in usa. If such recoverable amounl of the asset or ihe recoverable amount of the cash generaling unit Lo which the asset belongs is less than ils
camying amount, the carying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is lrealed as an impairment loss and Is recognised in Ihe slatement of profil and
loss. If, &t the reporting date there is an indicalion Ihat a previously assessed impairment less no longer exisls, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assst is
reflected al the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previousty recognized are accordingly reversed in the statemnent of profit and less.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rale that reflecls cument markel assessments of the
lime value of money and the risks specific lo the assel. in determining far value less costs of disposal, recent merkel {ransactions are laken into account. If no such
wansactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation mulliples, quoted share prices for publicly lraded
companias or other available fair value indicalors.

The company bases its impairment calcutalion on detailed budgals and forecast cakulalions, which are prepared separalely for each of the compnay's CGUs o which the
individual assels are allocated. Thesa budgels and forecasl calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer pericds, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows aller the filth year. To estimate cash fiow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgetsfforecasts, the company
extrapolates cash fiow projections in the budgel using 2 steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rale can be justified. In any case, this
growth rale does nol excead the long-lerm average grawih rate for the products, Industries, or counliy of countries in which the enlity operates, or for the markel in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses are racognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

investment In Subsldiaries and Joint Venture

A subsidiary is an enlily that is controfied by the Company. The Cempany controls ils subsidiary when the subsidiary is exposed, or has rights, to variable relums from its
invah t with the subsidiary and has the abiiity to effect thase retums through its power over the subsidiary.

A joint veniurs is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that hava joint conirel of the arrangement have rights Lo the nel asseis of the joinl venlure. Joint conlrolis
the conlractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relavant activilles require unanimous consent of the partias sharing
conirol.

The ions made in d ining significant influence of joint control are similar la Ihose necessary lo determine control over the subsidianes.

Investmenis in Subsidiaries are stated al cosl fess provision for impairment loss, if any. Invesiments are tested for impai L event of changes in circumst
Indicate thal the carrying amounl may nol be An impai t loss is recognised for the amounl by vhich the camying amount of investmenls exceeds ils
recoverabla amount.

investment and other financlal assets (other than Investment in Subsldiary and Jolnt Ventures)
Initlal recognition and measurement :

All financial assels are recognised initially at fair vaiua plus, in the case of financia! assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, \ransaclion costs that are
atlribulable to the acquisition of ihe financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assels thal require delivery of assats wilhin a tima frame eslablished by regulalion or
convenition in the marks! place (regular way lrades) are recognised an the kiada dals, i.e., the data that Ihe Company commits lo purchase or sell the assel.

Subsequent measurement :

For puposes of subsequent measuremen, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debt instruments al amorlised cost
Debl instruments al fair valus through other comprehensive income (F VTOCH)

Debl instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss {FYTPL)

Equily instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at {he amortised cosl if both the following conditions are mel:

The asset Is held wilhin a business model whose objeclive is lo hold assels for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Conlractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solsly payments of principal and interest (SPP) on the principal amount culstanding.

This calegory is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest
rale (EIR) method. Amorlised cosl is calculated by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisilion and fess or costs thal are an integrai part of the EIR. The EIR

amortisation is included in finance income in the profit of loss. The fosses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit of loss. This calegory generally appiies to \rade
and other receivables.

Brne
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Debt instrunients at FVOCH - A "debt instrument’ is classified as al lhe FYTOCHf bolh of the following criteria are mel:
The objective of the business model is achieved bolh by collecting coniractual cash flows and seling the financial assels, and
The asset's conlraclual cash fiows represenl SPPI

Debt instruments included wilhin the FYTOCI calegory are measured inilially as vell as al each reporting dale al fzir value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income {OCI). However, Ihe company recognizes interest income, impalrment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain of loss in ihe Statement of
Profil and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain o loss previously recognised in OC is reclassified from the equity to Stalement of Profit and Loss. Interest
eamed whilst holding FYTOCI debtinstrument is reporled as interes! income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL - FVTPL is a residual calegory for debt inslruments. Any debt inslrumenl, which does not meel the criteria for categorizalion as at amorlized cost
of as FVTOCH, is classified as at FVTPL

In addition, the company may elect fo designate a debt instrument, which olherwise meels amortized cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed
anly if dolng so red or eliminates a ‘ormcognﬂian#mrsis!emy(mfmmsloas'ammhgmmmanpwhasmldedmdedmdabt
Instrument as & FYTPL. DeblmshmwnlskmedmtinmeFVTPLcsIegon'aremasuadutﬁ:vumwﬂhsﬂmstwogniudinmP&L.

Equity investiments — Investments in equily instruments in scope of ind AS 109 are measured al fair value. Equily inslruments which are held for trading are classified as al
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all olher equily instruments, the Company makes an inevocable chaice upon inilial recognition, on an instrument by instrument
basis to classily the same eilher as al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH) or fair value through profil or loss (FVTPL). Amounts presented in other
comprehansive income are nol subsequently {ransferred to profil or loss. However, lhe Company lransfars the cumulalive gain or loss wilhin equily. Dividends on such
Investments are recognised in profil of loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of he investmenl.

Impalrment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expecled credil loss (ECL} model for measurement and recognilion of impairment loss on the following financial assels
and credit risk axposure. .

Financial assels thal are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cosl e.g., loans, debl securilies, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
Financial assels thal are debl instrumenls and are measured as al FVTCCL

Loan commitments which are not measured es at FVTPL
Financial guarantee contracts which are nol measured as at FVTPL.
The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairmenl loss afiowance on:
Trade ivables or contract 16 recaivablas; and Al lease receivables resulling from iransactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.
The application of simplified approach dees nol require Ihe company lo rack changas in credil risk. Ralher, it recognises impairment loss aliowance based on lilstime ECLs at
each reporting dale, right from its inilial recognilion.

For recognition of impairment loss on oiher financial assets and risk exposure, the pany that there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, it cradit risk has increased significantly,
ifalmaECLhmd.tl.lnaMWMMqunmuﬂnmmmmmmmthumumhwaslu\immmincz-dimgmmml

recognition, then the entily reverts to recog pall 1l loss alk based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL are the axpecled credit losses resulling from all possible
&Mtuﬂmhmﬂsﬂhﬂumm‘Theiz-m:mnECL;-aponlnnofhlle&naEu.whulmunalmddwlwmmtmposmmﬂ
monihs afler the reporiing dale.

ECL impairment loss {or i) gl ‘dumgmsmhmwummhmmmmmmswu;

Derecognition of financial assels

A financial assel is derecognised when

« The rights lo receive cash flows from Ihe asset have expired or

+ The Company has lranslered ts rights to receive cash fiows from Ihe assel or has assumed an obligation to pay Ihe received cash flows in full without malerial delay lo a
third parly under a ‘pass-through’ amrangement; and either (a)mommwhmmﬂem:uwamuﬂyaﬂhﬁuBmd tewards of Ihe assel, or {b} the company has neither
transferred nor relained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred conlro! of the assel.

When the company has d ils righls to recai cash fiows from an asssl of has enlered Into a pass-through arrangement, il evaluales if and to what exient it has
relained the risks and rewards of ownership. When Il has neilher ferrad nor relained subslanti ',aﬂofmmmrawardsdmuw,mrnmﬂmadwn:wldlm
am.wmmbmmmmuMMBnmdhmmmmmmmhmﬂwe.mocanmalsomimaﬂ
mﬂoﬂmﬂy.muuuhudmmm;udﬂoﬁhbﬂvmmadmnMIMMMMsmeNWMrm

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a g over the assel is d al the lower of the original carrying amount of the assel and the maximum
amount of tion that the company could be required to repay.

Fair value Measurement

The Company measures ils financial inslruments such as derivelive instruments, elc al fair value at each balance sheet dale. Fair value is the price 1hat would be received lo
seli an assel or paid lo iransfer a ligbility In an orderly iransaclion belween markel parlicipants at the measurement dale. The fair value of an assel or a liabiity is measured
using the assumplions that markel parlicipants would use when pricing the asset or liabilily, assuming that markel participanls act in their economic besl interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asse! takes into account a markel pariicipant’s abilily 1o generate economic benefils by using the assel in its highas! and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the assel in its highest and besl use.

All assets and kabililies for which fair value is ed or di d in the financial st ts are caleg d wilhin the fair value hierarchy, descnbed as follows, based on
tne lowsst level inpul that is significant lo the fair valus measurement as a whole:

+ Leve! 1 - Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabililies.
-Lamz-vmumsmmumtmmmkmmumvmmhamwmmm
-Lewla-vm-bmmhmmmmuuummummmmm s ble

For assels and liabililies that are recognised in the financia! slat s ona ing basis, the Comp ,dmammm«:mwdmmmm
y by re ing calegoris: ﬁun[basodonihehweﬂlwelirmﬁMlssignifmwlmlakvdnmeammaawhuc)stu-mddeschrepuwpmd.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoled finencial assels. Valuers are selecled based on markel knowledge,
reputation, indep and whether professional standards are mainlained. For olher assels management caries oul the valuation based cn its experience, markel
mmdgamhmmmappﬁcabhamnunQWrmmﬂs.

For the purpose of feir value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabillies on the basis of the nalure, characteristics and fisks of tha asset o
fiability and tha level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
Tmmnmnﬁuumhgpuk:ﬂafa'rvm.om«iﬂvmmmnymhnwmmanlnﬂas:

- Quantilative disclosures of fair value measuremant hierarchy

- Investment in unquoted equily share

- Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) .
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Inventories ©

invenlories are valued al Ihe lower of cosl and nel realisable value.
Cosls incutred in bringing each product of Rav: material fo its present localion and condition Includes cost of purchase and other cosls incurred in bringing the ventaries 1o
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first oul basis.

Inilial cost of inventorias includes the transfer of gains and losses cn qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw malerials.

Net realisable value is the eslimated selling price in the ordinary course of b less esti i cosls of lelion and lha asli d costs necessary lo make the sala.

Derivative Instruments :
The Company enters inlo cerlain derivalive conlracts lo hedge risk which are nol designaled as hadges.

Derivatives are initially recognised al fair value on lhe dale a derivalive conlract is entered inlo and are subsequently remeasured lo thelr fair value al the end of each
reporling period with changes included in other income | other expense.

The Company uses d live fi ial such as forward exchange conlracls, currency swaps, interesl rate swap, option elc. lo hedge its risks assoclated wilth
luoimmmmmnmmhnuesldesmmmmmm A “highly probable | transactions and firm commitments.

In respect of Forward Exchange Conlracts wilh underlyi ions, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such conlract Is amorlised as expense or income
over the [fe of contract. Other Derivative conlracts oulstanding al the Balance Sheet dale are marked to market and resulling loss, if any, Is recognized for in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Any profils or losses anising on canceliation of derivalive instruments are recognised as income or expenses for the period.

Cash and cash equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet wnplisecasnalbanksandonhanumshuMenndegoslstanoﬂgiﬂmMyotllmeMsmhss,wmhm
subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposils, as defined above, nel of oulslanding bank overdraits as
they are considered an integral par of the Company’s cash management.

Financial Liabilities :

Initial recogaition and measurement

Financlol iabiliies are classified, ot initial recognition, as financial kabililies al fair value through profit o loss, loans and borrowings, payables, of as denvalives designated as
hedging insiruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial lisbilities are recognised initizily al fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly altributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabililies include trade and other payables, securly deposils, loans and bosrowings and other financial liabiiities.

Subsequent measuremenl

Subsequent lo initiat recognilion, Ihe measurement of inanclal Jiablflies depends on thair classificalion, as described below:

Financlal liabititles at fair value through profit or loss

Fmafdailabiilissalmirvnhmmunhpluﬁtcrhsshcudarmm‘dhb&ﬂiesheummgamma‘ddiamhsdnmnaledwonmhhmimnasailalrvmelhrouw
pmﬂorbss.Fimndauiammmdussiﬁadasheidﬂ:rtmdingHmwhmdforﬂnpuposoo@mpmﬁnﬂuhhmum This category also includes derivalive
rwnnm;mmwmmmm“muugwasmmmmmhwmmnmww;\mm

Gains or losses on liabiities held for Irading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Fi\mﬁdllablliisdasmmduponirﬁalraoogﬁionnl’aiv&nhwﬁ:p«oﬁlWhnmmumdwmdahum.mmimmﬂahm
AS 109 ara satisfied. Fuhb‘mesdosiqnaledesFVTPL_Iairvauegdnsuossasallmmtomangesinownnrwﬂﬂskmmgnmdhom.'l‘msogalnslm:mno\
subsequently kransferred to slatement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumutalive gain or loss within equily. All olher changes in fai value of such
Hiability are recognised in 1he stalement ol profit of loss. TheCompam'hasrddaﬂmaadmmdiablkynsstukvawnlrmumpmﬂmbu.

Loans and borrowings
'rrhinmmmmwmwm.mmmﬂmwmmmwmmmummmmwodaummmmhem
W.GﬂwwmmmhmwhnmmmquMalhwwnElﬂm&mmmeM
by taking inlo it any M oF premi mwmmtmumum“mmsmumem,manmumummuhm
umdmmm.mwwmmsmwm.

De-recognition of financial Kabilities

A financial liabfiity Is de d when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires. When an exisling financial liabliily Is replaced by another from
mmohm«anmuanliwwamnllernxs.afmetmnudmemtinglmliwmmmmw"wdiﬂed.sud\mexd\mgeornmoﬂmhmbdnsmus-
rew%dlheoﬂwalwmmumgrﬂiondanwlnbﬁly.mmnmhmmspedivewmanm\lsismmg‘isedhmﬂalemumdpfdimdlo:s.

Borrowing Costs :

Bouwinocos!uﬁtemauﬁuﬂnﬂalo'heaoq:.nﬂlm.conslrucﬂonorpmﬂudimofanaasutMMwmssWﬂuwdimmwmndyMBMd
uscofnﬂamcapllakndaspaﬂafmlwsldﬂwnuol.Alolmrbcﬂowi\goommaenpensedlnlhepwbdhmbhthwocwr.smmﬁwcosiuwdddinlmlmd
other costs that an entity incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences ta the extenl regarded as an adjusiment to the
borrowing cosls.

Retirement and other employee benefits :

Reliremenl benefit in the form of provident fund is a delined \ripulion scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the cor ibution payable to the provident fund.
mwrmumpmmmnmm&J-dsaiemasmupmsa.vnmmmwummmdmIlmeor&mbnpayablulolm
mmmmmmmmmmmmhmmmmadypa'd.lmdnﬁdpmueloMsmismogiuduaMymardmm
Immdxionmadypaw.ltﬂ\acunh'ibuﬁonnteadvpaldmodnlmwnl.rmtimduatorsmicasreceivsdbmmhmmm,mmmhmmedm
massdwhmmtwpre-payn\emwm:dm.amduc!innln!mapaymm(oracashrntmd.

The company opsrates a defined benefit gratuily plan in India, which requices contributions lo be made {o a separalely administered fund.
Tanummmmundemmmmhmmmmmmwmmm

Rmmmumm-ndbsm.heeﬂeaolreassdmmmmﬂmmmwmmmmmm:mm
NMmmm(mmmmmmmmummmmm).mwmmmhnnbdmmem:mum
debil or credit lo relained earnings through OCH in the pericd in which they occur. Remeasurements ara nol reclassified 1o profit of loss in subsequent periods.
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Pasl service costs are recognised in profil of loss on the earker of:
The date of the plan amendmenl or culailment, and

The date thal the Group recognises related rasirucluring cosis
Net interes! is calculated by appiying the discount rale 1o (he nel defined berefil kiability or assel. The Company recognises ihe following changes in the nel defined benefit
obhgation as an expense In Ihe stalement of profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, pasl-service cosls, gains and losses on curlailments and nen-routine selliements; and
Nel interest expense or income

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :

Provisicns:

Pravisions are fecognised when the Company has a presenl cbiigalicn (legai or constructive) as a result of a pasl event, il is probable thal an oulfiow of resources embodying
economic benefils will be required to sellle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of Ine amount of the cbligation. When tha company expecls some or all of a

provision lo be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separale assel, but only when the reimbursement is virlually certain. The expense relating lo a provision is
presented in the stalemenl of profit and loss nel of any reimbursement.

11 the effect of the lime value of money is malerial, provisions are discounted using a currenl pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropiiale, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounling is used, the increass in Ihe provision due to tha passage of time is recognised as a financa cost.

Contingent liabilly is disclosed for:

+ Possible cbiigalions which will be confirmed cnly by fulure events not wholly within the coniro! of the Company or

+ Present obligalions uishgfmnpaslevem:mmﬂism!probablemalanomnawofmmrcuwilbereq&edtosduehenblgathnoramﬁabhas&naledlheamm
of the obligation cannot be made.

Earnings Par Share :

Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculaled by dividing the net profit of loss atlributable to equity holder of parent company {afler deducting preference dividends and atlribulable
laxes) by the weighted average number of eguity shares outslanding during the period. The weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period allributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and Lhe weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effscts of all dilulive polential equily shares.

Leases :

ind AS 116 requires the Company 1o assess al conlract inceplion whether a conlract is, of conlains, a lease. That is, i the conlract conveys the nght to conlrol the use of an
identified assel for a period of lime in axchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company spplies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, excepl for shoit-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises
iease liabililies to make lease paymenis and right-of-use assels representing the right Lo use the underlying assets.

1) Right-to-use assels

The Company tecognises right-of-use assels al the commencement date of lhe lease (Le., the dale the underiying asset is available for use). Right-ol-use assels are
measured al cost, Isuwnccwm!aleddepmciaﬁonmdh\pammmses.mmwmmymmmmn!lemmg. The cosl of righl-of-use assels includes
Ihe amount of lease labilllies recognised, inilial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al or before Ihe commencement dale less any leass incentives received.
Righi-of-usa assels are deprecialed on a straighl-iine basis over the shorter of the lease term and the eslimaled useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land & Building 10 years

If ownership of the leased assel transfers lo the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflacts the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculaled using
tha eslimaled usaful life of the assel.

il) Lease liabliities

Alﬂ\eonnmmmmofﬂmlem.mmrw\mshauhﬂiﬂhsmsuedumamamvmdmupmwﬁwbommmmmum The
tease paymenls inciude fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments} less any lease inc e ivable, ble lzase payments thal depend cn an index or a
m.mmwwmmmmmmus.mmmmsmmﬂnmmuammwmmwmhm

ised by the Company and pay am;whtmunmImmamMsmammmbM.vmm
paw\emsmuonoloupmmmmxmamnmiﬂwasms(mlmnmmmmuoﬁu)hlhapuhdi\vﬂchﬁummmcmm&m
that triggers the paymenl occurs.

lncalculalingthspmserﬂvluudbasepaymenls.hCmpamusesilslfmmﬂdbonmngrﬂeam\alaew | date b the interes! rate imphicit in the
lease Is not readily delerminable. Afler the commencement date, Ine amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accrelion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addilion, the camying amount of lease llabiities is ra-measured if Ihere Is a madification, a change in the lease lerm, a change in the lease paymenis (e.g.,
changes 1o fulure paymenis resulling from a change in an Index or rate used lo delermine such lease paymenis) or a change in the assessment of an option fo purchase the
underlying asset.

i) Short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets

Tmmeawlumm-hmbaserooogmonmmplmlnitsshoﬂ-(ermleaseswﬂraclshdu&mlsasadgunthwusue.‘lmahmcmalmubuetufm
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not conlain a purchase oplion). It also applies the l2asa of low-value assets recognilion exemplion lo leases of
office equipmeni ike priniers laken on lease elc., thal are considered to be low value. Lease payments on shorl-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a slraight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has given adjustments for lsase accounting in accordance wilh Ind AS 116 which came into sffect on 1 April 2019.
Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Campany doss not lransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidenlal to ip of an assel are classified as operaling leases. Rental income
arising is accounled for on a straight-iine basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue In the slatement of profil o loss due lo ils operating nalure. Initial direct costs
incurted in negolialing and arranging an operaling lease are acded lo the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the sama basis as
rental income, Conlingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Prior to ind AS 116, alaasnllr)assll’laddminepﬁmddeuamancemwmmﬁnnm.AhaseMkmmwbdwwalﬂmﬂskswmmw
to ownership lo the Company is classified as finance lease,

Fhamsbeam.wﬁﬂ!dfecﬁvdytrmleﬂouuInsseesubsmuiawenmerisk.sandbmfnshddmmlomstwdmuhasedilun.uecaplamdaumlwmommiﬂ
valug and p I value of the mini leasa paymenis at Ihe inception of the lease lerm and disciosed as leased assels. Lease payments under such leases are

apporti the c!wgesandmmwmollmbas-iabﬂvhasadonmfsmldmledmn.medmgeammamwmmgﬁmdlnmmlh
!imslalamemofpmﬂ&bss,uﬂwmeymmmﬁmlowaﬂfrmassatsmmimmcapﬂalizedi\aowdlmo\ﬁmmecmagmﬂponcymlm
borrowing cosls. Contingent renlals are recognized as expenses in the paricds in which they are incurred. A leased assel is daprecialed over the useful life of the assel.
Howaever, if thera Is no reasonable cartainty thal he Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capilalized leased assels are deprecialed over the shorter of
the estimated useful lite of the assel or the lease term.




{t) Government grants

Government granls are recagnised where Ihera is reasonable asswrance that the grant vill be recalved and all altached conditions will be complied with. When Ihe grant
refales lo an expense item, il is recognised as income on a systemalic basis over fhe pariods that the related costs, for which it is intendad to compensate, are expensed.
When Ihe grant relates to an asse, il is recognised as income in egual amounls over the expecled useful ife of the relaled assel

When the Company receives granls of non-monelary assets, the asset and (he grant are recorded at fair valus amounts and released o profit or loss over the expecied
useful life in a patlern of consumption of the benefil of the underlying assel ie. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by govemments
or reisled inslilutions, with an inleres! rale below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourabla interest is regarded as & goverment granl. The loan or
assistancs Is iniially recognised and measured al fair value and the government grant is measured as tha differsnce between the inilial canying value of the loan and the !
proceeds received. The loan Is subsequently measured as per Ihe accounting policy appiicabla to financial liabiillies. i

Government grants relating lo the purchase of property, plant and aguipment are included in non-curranticurren liabilities as deferred income and credited lo profil or loss on
a slraight-iine basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

{u

-

Slgnificant management judgement in applying accounting policles and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial s requires management lo make judgements, estimales and assumplions that affect Ihe repoited amounls of revenues,
expenses, assels and liabiities, and the relaled discloswes.

Significant managemen! judgements

The following are significan! management judgaments in applying the accouniing policies of the Company thal have the mos! significant effect on the financial statements.

Employee Benefits(Estimation of defined benefit obligation)

intended to reflect the recognition of fulura benefit cosl over the employee’s approximale sarvice period, based on the terms of plans and !?'19 invesiment and funding
decisions made. The accounting requires the. company to make \plions regarding variables such as discount rale, rate of compensalion increase and fulure mortalily
rales. Changes in these key assumplions can have a significant impact on the defined banafil obligalions, funding requirements and benafil costs incummed.

Post-employment benefils represents obligation that will be settled In the fulure and require assumplions lo project benefit obligati Post ! ! benefit accounting is

limpairment of trade receivables 3

The risk of uncollactabiity of accounts receivable is primarily esfimated based on prior experience wilh, and the past due slatus of doubtful deblors, while large accounts ars
assessed individually based on factors lhat include ability to pay, bankruplcy and payment histery. The plions and esti applied for determining the valuation
aliowance are reviewed pericdically.

Estimation of expacted useful lives and residual values of property, plants and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are deprecialed at historical cosl using straighl4ine method based ¢n the eslimated useful life, taken inlo account al residual value, The
assel’s residual valus and uselul life are based on the C 's best esti and reviewed, and adjusled if reguired, at each Balance Sheet dale.

Contingent Liabilities

Legal proceedings covering a range of malters are pending against the Company. Due lo the uncartainty inherent in such matters, # is often difficull to predict the final
outcomes. The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficull and complex factual and legal issues that sre subject to many uncertainties and complexities, :
including but not limited to the facls and circumstances of each parlicular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law, in the normal course of
business, the Company consults wilh legal counse! and ceriain olher experls on mallers related 1o litigations. The Company accrues a Babilly when it is delermined that an
adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possibla or an esti Is not dal , the
matler is disclosed.

e

Fair Value Measurements

When the fair values of financial assels and financial liabiities recorded In the Balance Sheel cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active marksls, their fair vakies
are measured using vakuation techniques which invaive various jut and i

22 Rounding of amounts

All amounts distiosed in the Financial Slatements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest Rupees Crores (wilh two places of dacimal) as per the requi of
Schedula lil, uniess otherwise slated.

9((\Q__




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023

NOTE 3 - OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amount in Rs '000

Computer
Software

Gross Block
Balance as at 31 March , 2021 2,457.22
Additions during the period
Disposals during the period B
Balance as at 31 March , 2022 2,457.22
Additions during the period 167.80
Disposals during the period -
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 2,625.02
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March , 2021 1,073.16
Depreciation charge during the period 491.44
Disposals during the period
Balance as at 31 March , 2022 1,564.60
Depreciation charge during the period 508.52
Disposals during the period -
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 2,073.12
Net block
Balance as at 31 March , 2022 892.62
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 551.89

Note:
Amortisation method

Computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over estimated useful life of five years from the date of capitalisation.

NOTE 3A . RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Particulars

Amount in Rs '000

Balance as at 31 March , 2021 71,132.93
Additions during the period

Disposals during the period -

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 71,132.93
Additions during the period 8,606.91
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 79,739.83
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 31 March , 2021 14,591.37
Additions during the period 7,295.68
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 21,887.056
Additions during the period 9,052.31
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 30,939.36
Net block

Balance as at 31 March , 2022 49,245.88
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 48,800.47

B




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAX ASSETS (Net)

Amount in Rs '000

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31 2022

{Unsecured and considered good)
Advance Income Tax (net of provisions)

487.11

2,779.51

Total

487.11

2,779.51

NOTE 5 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS({Net)

Amount in Rs '000

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31 2022

Component of Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Arising on account of temporary differences in accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (434.90) 1.54
{434.90) 1.54

Deferred Tax Assets
Allowed only on payment basis 878.86 650.80
Others 3,168.12 3,390.41
Carried Forward Loss - 4,639.04

4,046.98 8,680.25 1
Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) (4,481.88) (8,678.71)
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets:
Opening Balance as of April 1 8,678.71 5,116.00
Tax expense during the period recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 4,196.10 3,557.90
Tax income during the period recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 0.73 4.81
MAT credit entitlement - =
Closing Balance as at end of the period 4,481.88 8,678.71
Movement in deferred tax Assets, net
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets for period ended 31 March 2023 Amount in Rs '000
T Balance as Recognized in Recognized in Balance as

at 31 March 2022 Statement of ocli at 31 March 2023
Profit and Loss

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between tax deprecialion and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporiing 1.54 _ (436.44) - (434.90)
Others = - - -
Gross deferred tax [labilities 1.54 (436.44) B (434.90)
Deferred tax asset
Properly, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting - -
Allowed only on payment basis 650.83 228.03 - 878.86
Carried Forward Loss 4,639.04 (4,639.04) - -
Others 3,390.41 (221.56) (0.73) 3,168.12
Gross deferred tax assets 8,680.27 (4,632.57) {0.73) 4,046.98
Deferred tax expensel{income) - - - -
Deferred tax assets/(liabllities) (net) 8,678.73 (4,196.13) (0.73) 4,481.88




FMQvenlent in Deferred Tax Assets for period ended 31 March 2022;

Amount in Rs ‘000

Balance as
at 31 March 2021

Recognized in
Statement of
Profit and Loss

Recognized In
QcCi

Balanceas
at 31 March 2022 -

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between lax depreciation and

1.54

depreciationfamortization charged for the financial reporting 571.12 (569.58) -
Others - - - = 3
Gross deferred tax liabllitles 571.12 (569.58) - 1.54
Deferred tax asset
Properly, plant and equipment; Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciaticn/amortization charged for (he financial reporiing - - - i
Allowed only on payment basis 916.29 {266.47) - 650.83
Carried Forward Loss 2,199.50 2,439.54 - 4,639.04
MAT credit entitiement - - - - i
QOthers 2,571.32 814.28 4.81 3,390.41;
Gross deferred tax assets 5,687.11 2,988.35 4.81 8,680.27 :
Deferred tax expensef{income) - - - “ |
Deferred tax assels/(liabllities) (net) 5,115.99 3,557.93 4.81 8,678.73 !
TE 6 - INVENTORIES
Valued a realisable value, wi Is lowar Amount in Rs '000
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Provisions, Beverages (excluding Wine and Liguor ) and Smokes 059.75 717.92
Wine and Liquor 2,256.19 1,851.29
Stores and Spare Parls 923.20 1,020.86
Total 4,139.14 3,580.07
Note:
Inventories :

Costs incurred in bringing each product of Raw material fo ils present location and condition includes cost of purchase and other costs

incurred in bringing the invenlories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the Iransfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in QCl, in respect of the

purchases of raw malerials.

Net realisable value is the eslimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less eslimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary o make the sale.

All Inventory held by the Company are Fresh Stock & none of these are Circulation Slock.

B




NOTE 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

Amount in Rs "000

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good 4,948.24 4,706.50
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
Total 4,948.24 4,706.50

Trade receivables are non inlerest bearing and generally on terms of 60 to 80 days

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS ON 31.03.2023

Amount In Rs ‘000

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years Total |
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 4,893.14 - 55.10 4,948.24 |
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in credit ri - - - - ]
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - . =
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful . # 2 =
Total - - - 4,948.24
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts - S i =
Total Trade Receivables - - - 4,948 .24

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS ON 31.03.2022

Amount in Rs ‘000

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 3,482.68 582.69 641.13 4,706.50
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in credit ri - - - -
{ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - - -
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful - - - -
Total - - - 4,706.50
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts B - -
Total Trade Receivables - - - 4,706.50
NOTE 8 - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amount in Rs ‘000

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022

Cash on hand 302.41 821.34
Foreign Currency in hand - 50.44
Balances with Banks - In current accounts 28,259.97 20,844.15
Total 28,562.38 21,715.93
NOTE 9 - OTHE ANCIA SETS (CURRENT

Amount in Rs 000

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31 2022

Securily Deposits 345.00 100.00

NOTE 10 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Amount in Rs '000

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31 2022

Advance from suppliers 6,120.37 -

Balance With Government Authorities 6,097.80 5,157.29
Prepaid Expenses 1,230.00 1,874.11
Total 13,448.18 7,031.40




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023
=e TR TINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 202:

NOTE 11 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
—=0 - =MNTY SHARE CAPITAL

Amount In Rs '000

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Authorised Equity Share Capital Number of Shares Amount in Rs
Equity share of Rs 10 each
As at 1 April 2020 10 100
Changes during the period A :
As at 31 March 2021 10, 100
Issued, subscribed and paid up Number of Shares Amount in Rs
|Equily share of Rs 10 each, fssued subscribed and fully paid up
As at 1 April 2020 " 10 100
Changes during the period = %
As at 31 March 2021 10 100
As at 1 April 2022 10 100
Changes during the period
As at 30 Sep 2022 10 100

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one ciass of equily shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share, Each shareholders is eligible for one vole per share held. In
the evenl of liquidalion the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remalning assels of the Company,

b} Shareholding of promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year Changes during the year
Promoter name No.of shares* |% of total shares
Apeejay Surrendra Park Holels Limited (The Holding Company) 10,000.00 100% -
Total 10,000.00 100% -

[¢) Details of equity shares held by shareholders helding more than 5% of the aggregate share in the Company

As at March 31 2023 As at March 31 2022
Number of
% Sitarss % Number of Shares
Apeejay Sunrendra Park Holels Limiled (The Holding Company) 100% 10,000 100%, 10,000,

(e) No convertibls securities have been issued by the Company during the yaar,
{f) No calls are unpaid by any Director, an Officer of the Company during the year.

(e
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APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023

NOTE 22 - REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Amount in Rs '000

For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Room revenue 1,32,781.96 78,285.44
Sale of food and beverage 33,997.49| 23,501.38
Sale of wine and liquor 7.837.88 6,096.31
Other ancilliary and allied service income 2,443.77 1,125.54
Total 1,77,061.11 1,09,008.67
NOTE 23 - OTHER INCOME
Amount In Rs '000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Interest on Income Tax Refund 75.28
Miscellaneous Income 131.10 203.39
Car Hire Charges - -
Foreign Exchange Gains - -
Total 206.38 203.39
TE 24 . C UMPTION OF PROVISIONS, BEVERAGES, Wi LIQGOUR & SMOKES
Amount in Rs "000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Opening Stock 2,5669.21 2,680.35
Add: Purchases during the pericd 14,578.24 10,389.01
Less: Closing Stock 3,215.94 2,569.21
Consumption 13,931.51 10,500.14
NOTE 25 . EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Amount In Rs "000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 22,038.54 11,722.92
[Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,549.18 964.51
Graluity - 402.96 286.40
Leave Encashment o i
Slaff Welfare Expenses 196.37 48.75
Total 24,187.05 13,022.58|

Sul




NOTE 26 - FINANCE COSTS

Amount In Rs "000

For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Interest Expense (on vehicle loan) 110.61 182.97
interest on Inter Corporale Loan 58.63 1,632.22
Interest On Lease liabililies 5,707.32 5,854.65
Total 5,876.56 7,669.85
TE 27 - DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISAT XPENSE
Amount In Rs '000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 2) 7,802.03 8,495.07
Amortisation of intangible assels (refer note 3) 508.52 491.44
Amortisation of Right to use assel (refer note 3A) 9,052.31 7,295.68
Total 17,362.86 16,282.20,
NOTE 28 - OTHER E NSES
Amount In Rs '000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Power and Fuel 26,682.13 20,569.51
Renl 382.88 396.00
Rates and Taxes 2,734.09 2,853.67
Insurance Expenses 1,267.25| 1,605.98
Ap Exj e 9,043.59] 5,119.30
Guest Supplies 3,152.52 2,228.73
Advertisement and Seles Promotion 04.02 16.40
Commission 3,883.05 538.43
| Printing and Stalionery 491.8 254.53
Poslage, Telephone and Telex 906.9 787.92
Security & Service Charges 1,636.6 2,050.83
Traveling and Conveyance 109.0 44.79
Audil Fees
- Tax Audit Fees 60.00 60.00
- Stat Audit Fees 90.00 90.00
- Other Malther 215.00 150.00!
Bad Debt 641.13 4,236.73
Quitscurced contractual expenses 2,901.19 3,819.03
Legal and Professional charges _ 413.82 344.71
Hire Charges 984.50 520.29
Miscellaneous Expenses 925.89] 1,560.72
Repairs & Maintenance- Plant & Machinery 3,775.91 5,120.00
Repairs & Maintenance- Building - 0.01
|Repairs & Maintenance- Other 2,370 1,331.23
Lease Rental 21,797.45, 10,470.78
Total 84,558.35 64,478.38)
** Aparimenl expenses includes consumption of store supliies{ linen, carpel, upholesiry, room decoration material etc) made to the rcoms on account of service
and other related costs
Note - 29 - Incol ax Expense
Amount In Rs "000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Current Tax 4,700.00 -
Income Tax for Earlier Years b =
Deferred Tax 4,196.10 (3,557.90)
Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 8,896.10 (3,557.90)
Br the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 31,351.17 (2,741.10)
Applicable Tax Rale 27.82% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expense 8,721.90 (712.69)
Tax effect of:
Change in Tax rate and other items 17421 (2,845.21)
[Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 8,896.10 | (3,557.90)]
NOTE 29A - EARNING PER SHARE
Amount In Rs '000
As at

March 31, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Earning per share has been computed as under:

Profit / (loss) for the period 22,455,07 816.80
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 10.00 10.00
{Basic & Diluted [Earning & {Loss)] Per share 2,245.51 81.68

Bine




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2023

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amount in Rs "000

31 SEGMENT REPORTING

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at As at
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Bank Guarantees given by the Company lo HIDCO 5,000.00 5,000.00
TOTAL 5,000.00 5,000.00 |
There are no repertable segments other than hotels as per Ind AS 108, “Cperating Segmenl”
Amount In Rs "000
For the Year Ended 31 | For the Year ended 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Post employment benefil - defined conlribution plan | 1,549.18 964.51

Gratuity - defined benefit plan

The Company has a post employment defined benefit scheme in the form of gratuity. ThegratﬂyplmisgwunedhyﬂwPaymemofGramilyAd.W‘lz. Under the

scheme, employees are entilled fo graluity benefils based on fifleen days salary (baslc plus d

) for each ct

leted year of service, The aforesald

Bne

benefil accrues on completion of five years of service. The Company's [l d 'uchgwluwmmsareaammmdmmebmotadumialvaluakon
using Projected Unit Credit method of the Company's pericd end nbigalinn under the scheme.The cost o providing benefits under this plan Is determined on the
basis of an actuarial valualion done.
Defined Benefil Plans: As per actuarial valuation as on March 31, 2023 and recognised in the fi s in respecl of Employee Benefit Sch
Amount in Rs "000
PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021.22
Gratulty Gratuity
(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
A |Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
1 Present Value of DBO at the begining of the year 1,803.34 1,588.45
2 Current Service Cost 265.32 169.49
3 Interest Cost 137.65 116.91
4 Past Service Cost - .
5 Acquisitions (credil)/cost - -
6 Re-measuremenl (or Acluarial gains)/losses) arising from :
Effect of ch In demographi plins (3.83) -
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 2673 (112.18)|
Effect of experience adjusimenis (24.71) 130,65
- Others = -
7 Benefils Paid - -
8  |Present Value of DBO at the end of the year 2,293.50 1,893.34
B |Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Plan Assets al the beginning of the year - -
3 Investment Income - .
4 Relum on Plan Assets, excluding amount gnised in Net Ink Exp - -
5 Aciual Company Conltributions = .
8 Fund Translered . -
7 Benefits Pald - -
8 Plan Assets at the end of the year - -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
1 Acluarial (gains)fiosses due lo :
Effect of changes In demographic assumplins (3.83)
Effect of changes in financlal assumptions 2573 (112.16)
Effect of experience adjusiments (24.71) 130.65
- Cihers
2 Retum on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognised in Nel Inlerest Expense - R
- Re-measurement (or Actuarial gains)/(losses) because of change in effecl of asset celling - =
4 Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive income (2.81) 18.60
Funded Status
1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 2,263.50 1.803.34
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
3 Funded Stalus [Surplus/{(Deficit)] (2293.50) (1893.34)
4 Effect of Balance Sheet assets limit - -
5 Unrecognised Past Service Cost - -




8 Net Asset/{Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet | (2293.50)[ {1893.34)}

E Principal Actuarial A ption Used: As al31st March 2023 As atd1ist March 2022
Discount Rales 7.27% 7.36%
Expecled Salary increase rates # 5.00% 5.00%
Inflation Rale 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table . IALM(12-14) Ullimate|  IALM(12-14) Ullimate

# The eslimate of fulure salary increases considered in actuarial valualion takes into account faclors like infation, seniority, promotion and other relevani factors.

G Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
The conlibulion expected to be made by the Company Company for the period ended 31 March 2023 is INR 28.21 thcusands

H The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follows:

Expected cash flows over the next As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
1 year 32.60 20.00
2to 5 years 150.09 99.00
More than 5 years 6,066.99 8,078.00
Total 6,249.68 6,197.00
I Sensitivit Sis
The following lable present a sensilivity analysis lo one of the relevanl acluarial assumption, holding other assumplions constant, showing how ihe defined benefit
cbligation would have been effected by changes in the rek t acluarial assumplions that were bh ble al the rep g date. Sansilivity analysis is
determined based on the expected movement in liability if the key assumptions were nat pmved to be frue on dﬂorsnl count.
As at 31 March 2023 P | As at 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease - Increase Decrease

Discounl rate (-/+ 0.5%) 2158.66 2439.00 1774.86 2021.39

% change compared to base due lo sensilivity -5.88% 6.34% -6.26% 8.76%

Salary growih rale (-/+ 0.5%) 2440.65 2156.05 2023.11 1772.34

% chang pared to base due lo sensitivity 6.42% -5.99% 6.85% -6.39%

Employee turmover rate (-/+ 10%) 2292.92 2204.09 1893.48 1863.21

% change compared to base due to sensilivity -0.03% 0.03% -0.01% 0.01%

Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 2204.69 2292.30 1894.42 1862.26

% change compared fo base due to sensilivity 0.05% -0.05% 0.06% -0.06%

# Incorporated with effect from February 5, 2018

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumplions constanl. In practice, this is unlikely fo occur and changes in
some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculaling the sensilivity of the defined benefil obligalion to significant acluarial tions the same method (present
value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined
benefit fiabifity recognised in the balance sheel. The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the sensilivity analysis did nol change compared Lo the prior
period.

[.l. Risk associates with plan provisions |

Valuations are perfarmed on cerlain basic set of pre-delermined assumplions and other regulalory framework vihich may vary overlime. Thus, the
Company is exposed to various risks In providing the above graluity benefit, the most significant of which are as follows:

Interest rate risk : The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rales. A fall in inleresl rates will resull in an increase in the ultimale cosl of providing the
above banefit and will thus resultin an Increase In the value of the iiability (as shown in financial statemenls).

Liquidity risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able 1o meet the short tenm graluity pay-ouls. This may arise due 1o non availability of sufficiend cashicash
equivalenis (o meel the liabilifies.

Salary escalation risk : The present value of the defined benefil plan is calculaled with the plion of salary ir rate of pian paricipants in future. Deviation in the
rate of increase of salary in future for plan parlicipants from the rate of increase in safary used lo determine lhe present value of obligation will have a bearing on Ihe plan's
liabitity,

Demeographic risk : The Company has used cerlain mortality and aftrition assumplions in valuation of te liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of aclual experience
lurning out io be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory risk : Gratuily benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gralulty Act, 1972 (as amended from time 1o time}. There is a risk of
change in regulations requiring higher graluily pay-outs e.g. increase in the maximum limit on gratuity and upward revision of maximum graluity limit will result in gratuity plan
obligation.

K Demographic assumptions As at As at
31st March 2023 J1st March 2022
100% of IALM 100% of IALM
Mortality rate 201214 201214
Normal relirement age 55 Years 55 Years
Altrition rate based on differenl age Company of employees 5.00% 5.00%
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Related parly disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 24
Related parly

Apeejay Surrendra Park Holels Limiled

Key management personnel

Mr. Vijay Dewsan

Ms. Priya Paul

Mr. Karan Paut

Mr. Alul Khosla

Mr. Debanjan Mandal

Mr. Swesh Kumar

Ms. Shalini Keshan

the period

Parliculars of transactions with related ies durl

Ralationship
Parenl Company

Relationship

Non-executive Direclor
Chief Financial Olficer
Non-execulive Director
independenl Director
Company Secrelary

Amaount in Rs '000

For the period ended
31 March,2023

For the pericd
ended 31
March, 2022

A) Apeejay Surrendra Park Holels Limited - Parent Company
- Loan Repaid (Ne)

- Loan Recaived (Nef)

- Interest

B} Apeejay Surrendra Park Holels Limited { Unit : Flurys)
-Purchase of Goods

1.637.76
58.63

344.99

22,608.17

1,632.22

22996

Balances outstans with related parties as at the pericd end

As at
Mareh 31, 2023

A) Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited - Parent Company

-Borrowings

-Accruad Interesl

- Reimbursamanl ¢l expenses

B8) Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Umiled { Unit : Flurys)
-Trade Payabls

10.50

574.95

As at March 31
2022

1.537.76
1,468.93

229.98

NOTE -34 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Company as a lessee

The Company as a lessee has entered Inlo lease conlracls which consisls of leasa of building. Belore the adoplion of Ind AS 116, the Company
classified each of ils leases (as lasses) at Ihe inceplion date as either a finance lease or an cperaling lease.

The Company also has cerlain leases with lease terms of 12 monins or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions

for these leasas.
Sel out below are the net carrying amounts of right of use assets gnised in bal sheet and during the period :
Amount in Rs ‘000
Asat As at March 31 2022
Particulars March 31, 2023
As al April 1 4924588 58,541.56
Addilions. 8,606.91 -
Depraciation (9,052.31)) 7,285.68,
As al March 31 . 48,800.47 (!I:ls.lg
Set oul below are the carrylng amounts of lease liabilities and movement during the period
Amount in Rs 000
Asal As at March 31 2022
Particulars Mareh 31, 2023
Balance as at April 1 62,285.80 66,431,256
Additions 4,406.12 -
Accrelion of interasi 570732 5854.65
Payments (12 ;m.gl {10,000
Balance as at March 31 60,188.38 62,285.90
Current 7,741.71 5,355.80
Non-curment £2,446 67 56,930.10
A gnised in the of Profit and Loss
Partioulars For the Period ended | For the Year ended 31

expenses)

Depreciation axpense of righl-of-use assals {recognised in depreciation and amortization|

31 March, 2023 March, 2022

9,052.31

7,20588

Interest expense on leass liabililies (recognised in finance costs) 5,707.3: 5,854.65)
Variable lease pay i ised in other exp 1] 22,180.33 10.470.78
Total amount recognised In Stat t of Profit and Loss for the period 36,939.98] 23!021 2]
A recognised in the St of Cash Flows

Total cash outfiow for the leases 12,210.98 10,000.00

Bere




E AL BAN, ENT
For the purp
cash equivalents,
The primary objective of the C

1o maximise shareholder's value,

of the C

pany’s capilal

pary's capilal islo

. capilal includes issued capital, all olher equily reserves and long lerm borrowed capital less reporiad cash and

in an eflicient capiial structure lo reduce the cost ol capital, support the corporale siralegy and

The Company's policy is 1o borrow pimarily through banks to mainlaln sufficient liquidity. These borrowings, togelher vith cash generated from opéralions are ullised

for operations of the Company includng periodic capital projects undariaken for Ihe Company's exi

its

in

capital. The C &nd makes adj in fight of

pany capilal G
ratio, which s nel debi divided by tolal capilal plus net debl. The Company includes within nel dabi, inleres| bea

i’f;:ulln;ﬁq table summaries lhe capital of the Company :

The Company

sting picjects. The Company monilors capilal on the basis of cost of
g il capital using a gearing
fing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash

[chmm

Non-current borrowings (including curent malurilies of long torm borrowings)
Currenl

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents

TOTAL BORROWINGS (NET)

Total equily

TOTAL CAPITAL [EQUITY+ NET DEBT)

Gearing ratio

As at As at March 31
March 31, 2023 2022

750.67 1,579.17

- 1.537.78

(28,562.38) {21.715.83)
(27,811.70), {18,593.00
22.328.33 (127.82)
5,482.37 18,726.82
507 29% 98.32%

No changes were made lo the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period/year ended 31 March 2022 and 315! march 2023,

NOTE -36 FAIR VALUE ugsug;gm]
i) Financial | bycategory
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Amorlised cost Amortised cost
INR INR
484824 4,708.50
28,562.28 21,715.93
345.00 100.00
33,855.52 26,522.43
75087 3,116.83
60,188.38 62,285.60
62,895.25 5941642
2,401.27 3.378.02
1,26,235.57 1,28197.28

(ii) Fair valus
The fair values of fi

assels and kabili

are
p P al the

esiimale the falr values,
The management assessed that fair values of rade receivables, cash and cash

! umolmumlﬁhumurdbermeivnluulllnmllwpmhhnsmaﬂﬁihhmmmmm»mm
date. Mathods and assumplions used lo estimale the fair values are cansistent in all the years. The foflowing ds and

were used to

bles and other fi

ial Fabilities

approximale 1o Iheir camying amounls largaly dus to the short-temn malurities of these ins : also
bwmﬁmsdhﬁmiﬁundnhawhﬂunnmsmﬂnWdMﬁlnmmndﬁwmmmm

(it} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

security dep
Further,

b ings, lrade
d the

carrying amount of cerlain non-current

and [air values is not expected to be

The camying ameunt of assels and fu jal Kabililles al it

d cost in the fi dal st

Company does ot anticipale thal the camying amount would be significanty different from the values thal would eventually be racelved of sellad

INOTE -37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's principal f | of b

1o finance and supporl the of the C: . The Company's princip
its operations.

The Company's b are

such risks on its financial performance and capital. For this purp

posad (o a varialy of risks including liquidily risk, credit risk and markel risk. The Comp
risks by managing them through a sinuclured process of identificalion, assessment and priorilization of risks folowad by cocrdinaled
risk

ion of thelr fair values since the

iy seeks fto

0 mmmmm.mm&sudommhbﬁhs.nnmhmmdmmlalhbﬂnts
incipal fi "usmhdudaludnlndoltmuuivah’u:ndmshmdmhoquhmlhuldnﬁwdinﬂ.-hm

ize p ial adverse effects of these

efforts to menitor, minimize and miligate the impact of

. the C

enter inlo derivative fi

for

{A) Credit risk
Credil risk refers 1o risk of f
ivilies (mainly Irade b

Credi risk management

Ioss 1o the Ci y if

Credit Risk Management
Provision for expecled crecil loss

Trads Receivables
Cash & Cash equivalents
Olher Financial Assets

Provision for axpected credit loss

Trade Receivables

Cash & Cash equivatenis
Giher Financial Assels

Bme.

(a) Trade receivables

y has laid
the management from time (o lime. tnnlmmmmmwhmmmmnmmmmw

fies fail lo meel their

and s
way of properly defined

and ara revi
rk. The C:

d by

\pany coes not

bligations. The Company is exposed lo credil risk from its operaling
As at 31st March 2023
Estimated gross Expected Credit Carrying
carrying amount at Loss Amount net of
default Iimpairment
4,948.24 - 494824
28,562.38 26,552.38
345.00 - 345.00
X : B
As st 31st March 2022
Eslimated gross Expected Cradit Carrying
carrying amount at Loss Amount net of
default Impairment
4,706 50 - 4,706.50
21,71583 - 21,7150
100.00 - 100.00
EEYE : LN




Trade receivables consisi of large number of cuslomers. in order to mitigale the risk of i | toss from dale , the Company has an ongoing credil evaluation process in respect of
customers who are allowed crodit period. In respsct of walk-in cuslomers the Company does nol allow any cradit period and therafore, it not exposad lo any credil risk.

In general, it is presumed that credil risk has significanily increased since inilial recognilion if the paymients are more than 80 days past due. The Company has a poficy lo provide for
specific receivablas which are overdus for a period over 180 days. On accounl of adoplion of Ind AS 109, the Company also uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss
or reversal thareof. »

R - s : As at As at
3ist March 2023  31st March 2022

Lass alloviance al the beginaing of lhe year - -
Change in all during the p y - -
Loss sllowance al the end of the perodiyear ” =
(b} Cash & Cash equivalents :

The Company mainlains exposure in Cash and cash equivalenls. Invesimenis of surplus are mads within assigned credil fimils with approved counterparties who meel the threshold
regquiremanis wilh respect lo ralings, financial sirength, credil spreads elc. Countarparty credil limils are sel lo minimize conceniralion fisk and are reviewed on a periodic basis.

of for credit impaired — Other financial assels As at As at
3Jist March 2023 31st March 2022

Loss aliowance al the beginning 3 =
Allowance for expected credit loss(nai) % o5
Loss allowance at the end a 2
{B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk implies thal the Company may nol bs abls to meet ils obligati with its ial liabilitias. The Company ges ils liquidiy risk on the basis of the business
plan thal ensures that the funds required for fi g the busi jions and ing liabililies are in a limefy manner and in the currency roquired at oplimal costs.
The regularty ilars rolling f of the C: 's liquidity posilion 1o ensure il has sufficiant €ash on an ongoing basis o meel oparational fund requirements.
Addilionally, fhe Company has commilted fund and non-fund based credil ines from banks which may be drawn anylime based on Company’s fund req Is. The Cormpany mal
@ cautious liquidity siralegy wilh posilive cash balance and undrawn bank lines Ihroughout the period.
The following are the r ining malurities of fit Kabilities al Ihe reporting dale.

B




Conlractual matudity of financizl isbifities Up to 1 year { 1yearlo§ year More than § years Total
31-Mar-23
Bomowings (inchuding current maturnifies) 750,67 - - 75067
payment on 110,61 p - 11061
Trada payables 62,895.25 - - 62,895.25
Lease liabilities Lian 3717434 15,272.33 60,188.38
Inlerest paymenl on Lease Lisbilities 11,248.85 16,618.93 51068 28,678.75
Other financial liabilities 2.401.27 - - 240127
— Total| 65,143.36 | 5409327 | 1578328 | 1,55,024.83
B gs (including current itiag) 27206.26 75067 - 3,118.93
Interesl payment on Borrowings 147.62 v - 225.39
Trade payables 59.418.42 - - 59.418.42
Lease liabiklies 5,355.80 41,657.77 15,272.33 62,285.90
Inleres! payment on Lease Liabililies 5854.65 20,604.85 2843500 54,894.51
Other lizbilities . 3,378.02 - - 3,378.02
Total 76,518.77 | 63,091.07 _43,707.33 183,317.17
(C) Market Risk

Markel risk is the risk of loss of fulure earnings, fair vahue or future cash flows thal may resull from a changs in Ihe price of a financlal insirument . The value of a financial instrument may
change as a result of changes in the interest rales and ofher markel changes lhal elfecl market risk sensilive instruments. Market risk is atiribulable 1o all market risk sensifive financial
Instruments including | i hiss and b i

{1} Interast rate risk

Interasl rale risk Is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of a fi dal will fuciuate of ges in markel inleres| rales. The Company Is nol exposed to tha
sk of changes in rarket interest rales. The Company constanlly monitors the credil markels and rabal ils fi ing #1 lo achlave an oplimal malurity profie.
Intorest rate risk exposure
The interest rate profile of the Company s inleres| bearing nencial inslruments a1 the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Fixed rate instruments Asat As at
31st March 2023  J1st March 2022
Financial assels 33,855.62 2652243
Financial iabiliies 1,20@.,57 1,27,446.61
1 1.19 1,51,8669.03
Variable rate insiruments As at Asat
3ist March 2023 31st March 2022
Financlal assels - -
Financial liabililies - <
(W) Equity price risk
The Company has not made any investment in equily instruments and henca, is nol exposed 1o equily price risk.
(1) Currency risk
The Company does nol have currency risks sinca it is nol exp 1o any foreign y i
The carrying is of cartain s of assals pledged as securily for curent and non-currenl borrowings pursuant fo Lhe requirements of ind AS 2, ind AS 18, Ind AS 38 and Ind AS
107:
Pariiculars Asat As at
31 March 2023 3 022
iNon-current assels
Vehicles 2,074.48 2,615.31
2,074.48 2,515.31

NOTE -39 INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTEGTION FUND
The Company is not required lo transfer any amount lo the Investor Education and Protaclion Fund

Note -40
No proceedings have been inliated o is pending against the Company for holding any benami property under tha Benami Transaction (Prohibilion) Acl, 1988 (45 of 1888) and Rules made
there under.

Hote - 41

The Company has not ideniified any iransaction wilh Companies siruck off under section 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 or saclion 660 of the Companias Acl, 1856,

Nole - 42

Al tions have been ded in the books of sccount and there are no unrecorded income fthat have been disclosed during the year in lhe tax essessmenls under ha Income-Tax
Acl, 1861, Moreover there are no unracorded income and related assals perlaining to previous years.

Note - 43

Tha Company has not iraded or invesied in Cryplo Currency or Viriual Currency during the financlal year,

During the year ended March 31, 2023, with the unlocking of resirictions, there has baen imp in and posilion of the company including tha financlal ratios of
the Company. As of March 31, 2023, the compeny based on the current year p d markel rios, has projected imp d cash flows from operalions for next yesr. Basis
the above, Ihe management has assessed that there are no L on this 4 It gly, the pany has prepared this fi ial on a going concem
basls,

NOTE-45. Figures relaling to previous periods have been diy paniad wh idered y fo make them comparabls with the current pericd's figures.

For and on bahalf of Board of Directors of
Apeejay Holels & Resfaurants Pvi. Lid,

Kolkata
Date

Vijay Dewan Atul Khosla
(DIN: 00051164) {DIN: 01009784)




44)

Ratio Calculation
Financial Ratios h ator Denominator As on 31.03.2023}As on 31.03.2022 Variatlon.
0y Current Ratio Current assels Current fiabilities 0.65 0.40 (0.62)
@ Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 6.01 (1192.19) 1.01
Debt Co 2 Earnings available for :
o Service Coverage Ratio debi i Debt Service 72.72 B.96 (7.11)
X Average
i Return on Equity Net Profits after laxes Shareholder's Equily 0.51 0.76 0.33
o inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 2.35 1.96 (0.20)
Average Trade
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Revenue Racelvable 9217 4.36 (1.11)
{vi)
Purchases of goods,
Trade payables turnover ratio services and other Average Trads 0.06 0.04 (0.35)
expenses Eayabis
{wii)
(vii} Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue Working Capital (6.32) (1.¢8) (2.23)
% Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.18 (0.03) 8.04
(x) Return on Capital Employed Canmy LEIS ISt capital Employed 6% 8% 0.23




